
Committee Agenda

1

AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH
Wednesday, 29th July, 2015
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee South, which 
will be held at: 

Roding Valley High School, Brook Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 3JA
on Wednesday, 29th July, 2015
at 7.30 pm .

Glen Chipp
Chief Executive

Democratic Services 
Officer

Jackie Leither (Directorate of Governance)
Tel: 01992 564243   Email: 
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:

Councillors J Hart (Chairman), N Wright (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, G Chambers, 
K Chana, R Jennings, H Kauffman, J Knapman, A Lion, H Mann, L Mead, G Mohindra, 
A Patel, C P Pond, C C Pond, C Roberts, B Sandler, T Thomas, L Wagland, S Watson, 
S Weston and D Wixley

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should speak to the webcasting officer or 
otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the meeting.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Public Relations Manager 
on 01992 564039.



Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 29 July 2015

2

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

1. This meeting is to be webcast; 

2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and 

3. the Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties).

If you are seated in the public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras will 
capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will become 
part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should speak the webcasting officer.”

2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 10)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 
showing the location of the meeting.

3. MINUTES  (Pages 11 - 24)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 1 July 2015  
as a correct record. (attached)

4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required.

7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 25 - 68)

(Director of Governance)  To consider planning applications as set out in the attached 
schedule



Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 29 July 2015

3

Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control.

8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number

Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.

Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require:

(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press.

(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision.

Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
report is based;  and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor.

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 



Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 29 July 2015

4

responsible for the item.



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees

Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee. 

Can I speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent. 

Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw. 

Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving.

What can I say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members. 

If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence.

Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application.

http://www.eppingforesdc.gov.uk/


How are the applications considered?

The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations. 

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so.

The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee.

Further Information?

Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’



Area Plans Subcommittee South – Location Plan 

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.software-partners.co.uk

http://www.software-partners.co.uk
http://www.software-partners.co.uk




Area Planning Subcommittee South 2015-16
Members of the Committee and Wards Represented:

 

 

 

Cllr Hart
Loughton 

Forest

Cllr Knapman
Chigwell 
Village

Cllr Angold-
Stephens

Loughton Roding

Cllr Chambers
Buckhurst Hill 

West

Cllr Patel
Buckhurst Hill 

West

Cllr C C Pond
Loughton 
Broadway

Cllr Roberts
Loughton 
Alderton

Cllr Sandler
Chigwell 

Row

Cllr Watson
Buckhurst 
Hill West

Cllr Weston
Loughton 

Forest

Cllr Wixley
Loughton 
Fairmead

Cllr Kauffman
Loughton St 

Mary's

Cllr Lion
Grange Hill

Cllr Mann
Loughton St 

Mary's

Cllr Mead
Loughton 
Fairmead

Cllr Wright
Buckhurst 
Hill East

Cllr Chana
Grange Hill

Cllr Jennings
Loughton St 

John's

Cllr Mohindra
Grange Hill

Cllr Wagland
Chigwell 
Village

Cllr Thomas
Loughton 
Alderton

Cllr C P Pond
Loughton St 

John's

http://haako/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=397




1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 
South

Date: 1 July 2015 

Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook 
Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 3JA

Time: 7.30  - 9.28 pm

Members 
Present:

J Hart (Chairman), N Wright (Vice-Chairman), K Chana, H Kauffman, 
J Knapman, A Lion, H Mann, L Mead, C P Pond, C C Pond, S Watson, 
S Weston and D Wixley

Apologies: K Angold-Stephens, R Jennings, G Mohindra, A Patel, C Roberts, B Sandler, 
T Thomas and L Wagland

Officers 
Present:

S Solon (Principal Planning Officer), J Leither (Democratic Services 
Assistant), T Carne (Public Relations and Marketing Officer) and A Hendry 
(Democratic Services Officer)

6. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings.

7. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 3 June 2015 be 
agreed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

8. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor J Hart declared a non-
pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda. The Councillor advised that he 
lived in Stradbroke Grove but that he was not close enough to be consulted by the 
Council and that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon.

 EPF/0455/15 – 54 Stradbroke Grove, Buckhurst Hill

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor H Kauffman declared a 
non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda. The Councillor advised 
that he was known to the applicants and that he would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application but would not vote.

 EPF/1051/15 – 78 Princes Road, Buckhurst Hill



Area Planning Sub-Committee South 1 July 2015

2

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

It was noted that there was no urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

10. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 9 be determined as set out in the 
attached schedule to these minutes.

11. PROBITY IN PLANNING - APPEAL DECISIONS, 1 OCTOBER 2014 TO 31 
MARCH 2015 

The Sub-Committee received a report regarding Probity in Planning – Appeal 
Decisions for the period 1 October 2014 to 31 March 2015.

In compliance with the recommendation of the District Auditor, the report ont the 
agenda, Item 8, advises the decision-making committees of the results of all 
successful allowed appeals (i.e. particularly those refused by committee contrary to 
officer recommendation). The purpose was to inform the committee of the 
consequences of their decisions in this respect and, in cases where the refusal is 
found to be unsupportable on planning grounds, an award of costs may be made 
against the Council. 

Since 2011/12, there have been two local indicators, one of which measures all 
planning application type appeals as a result of committee reversals of officer 
recommendations (GOV08) and the other which measures the performance of officer 
recommendations and delegated decisions (GOV07).   

Over the six-month period between 1 October 2014 and 31 March 2015, the Council 
received 40 decisions on appeals (38 of which were planning related appeals, the 
other 2 were enforcement related). 

GOV07 and 08 measure planning application decisions and out of a total of 38, 14 
were allowed (36.8%). Broken down further, GOV07 performance was 6 out of 29 
allowed (20.68%) including one part-allowed/part-dismissed and GOV08 
performance was 8 out of 9 (88.88%), although out of this 8, one was part-allowed/ 
part-dismissed. 

Whilst performance in defending appeals at 36.8% appears high, there was no 
national comparison of authority performance. Members were reminded that in 
refusing planning permission there needs to be justified reasons that in each case 
must be not only relevant and necessary, but also sound and defendable so as to 
avoid paying costs. This was more important now then ever given a Planning 
Inspector or the Secretary of State can award costs, even if neither side has made an 
application for them. Whilst there is clearly pressure on Members to refuse in cases 
where there are objections from local residents, these views (and only when they are 
related to the planning issues of the case) are one of a number of relevant issues to 
balance out in order to understand the merits of the particular development being 
applied for. 



Area Planning Sub-Committee South 1 July 2015

3

RESOLVED:

That the report regarding Probity in Planning – Appeal Decisions 1 October 2014 to 
31 March 2015 be noted.

CHAIRMAN





Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/0395/15

SITE ADDRESS: 52 Spareleaze Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1BT

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Replacement boundary wall to front of property and relocation of 
pedestrian entrance.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=573887

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Brickwork to be used on the boundary wall hereby approved shall match or be 
similar to that used on the existing dwelling, and the railings and gates hereby 
approved shall be painted in a black colour.

3 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

4 No development shall take place until details of the landscaping of the site, including 
retention of trees and other natural features and including the proposed times of 
proposed planting (linked to the development schedule), have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved landscaping 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and at those times.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=573887


Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/0410/15

SITE ADDRESS: 41 Alderton Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3JD

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Alderton

Loughton St Marys

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of part one and part two-storey rear extension, a two-
storey side extension, a two-storey front extension, raising of roof 
by 60 cm, and provision of two rear dormer windows.

DECISION: Refuse Permission 

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=573902

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of its bulk, height and proximity to the site boundary, the proposed side 
extension, together with the proposed increase in roof height, would give the house 
an excessively bulky and over-dominant appearance in relation to its immediate 
neighbours.  As a consequence, the proposal would detract fromt he street scene 
causing significant harm to the character and appearance of the locality.  The 
proposal is therefore contrary to Local Plan and Alterations Policies CP2 (iv) and 
DBE10, which are consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework.

2 By reason of its height, bulk and rearward projection adjacent tot he site boundary 
with 43 Alderton Hill, the proposal would appear excessively overbearing when seen 
from 43 Alderton Hill.  It would therefore be excessively harmful to the living 
conditions of 43 Alderton Hill, contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policy DBE9, 
which is consistent witht he National Planning Policy Framework.

WAY FORWARD

A significant revision to achieve a less bulky design that does not significantly project rear of the 
first floor rear elevation of 43 Alderton Hill at upper level is suggested as a basis for a more 
acceptable proposal.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=573902


Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/0427/15

SITE ADDRESS: 29 Alderton Hill 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3JD

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Alderton

Loughton St Marys

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing house and construction of a new two storey 
house with accommodation in the roof, including provision of 
balcony at first floor rear, and erection of new gates and railings on 
the front boundary.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=573954

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with 9 
plans numbered 1097-PL-20A; -21A; -22A; -23A; -25A; -11A; - 15A; -12B; -02.

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 No development shall take place until details of the landscaping of the site, including 
retention of trees and other natural features and including the proposed times of 
proposed planting (linked to the development schedule), have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved landscaping 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and at those times.

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

6 There shall be no discharge of surface water on to the highway.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=573954


7 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular 
accesses within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

8 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/0455/15

SITE ADDRESS: 54 Stradbroke Grove
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5PF 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Two storey side and rear extension.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574034

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574034


Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/0530/15

SITE ADDRESS: 34 Barrington Green 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 2BA

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Broadway

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of single storey flat and redevelopment to provide 3 
flats in a three storey building with accommodation within the roof 
and provision of 1 parking space at the rear and 3 off street parking 
spaces at the front with one space allocated to the adjoining 
dwelling at number 36 (amended scheme to EPF/2526/14)

DECISION: Refuse Permission 

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574214

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of its bulk, spread of development and siting, the proposal would appear 
cramped within the site, in contrast with the character and appearance of the locality 
and harmful to the interests of visual amenity of both neighbours and the wider 
locality.  As a consequence, the proposal is contrary to Local Plan and Alterations 
policies CP2(iv), CP7, DBE1(i) and DBE2, which are consistent with the National 
Planning Policy Framework.

WAY FORWARD

Any development of the site is likely to be considered more favourably if it were restricted in its 
height and limited in its footprint to the footprint of the existing building.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574214


Report Item No: 6 

APPLICATION No: EPF/0728/15

SITE ADDRESS: Lucas McMullen
258 High Road 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1RB

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Provision of additional floor to provide 9 apartments (1 x studio, 7 x 
1 bed, 1 x 2 bed). (Revision to EPF/2379/14)

DECISION: Refuse Permission 

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574714

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposal fails to demonstrate the proposed refuse storage arrangements are 
practical.  The inadequate provision of refuse storage arrangements is likely to be 
harmful to the amenities of the locality and the living conditions of the proposed flats.  
As a consequence, the proposal is contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policies 
DBE2 and DBE9, which are consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework.

2 By reason of its siting within close proximity to the discharge point of odour 
extraction equipment serving the restaurant at the ground floor of 258 High Road, 
the proposal would result in the provision of dwellings that would be highly exposed 
to unpleasant odours.  The new dwellings, particularly Flats 8 and 9, are therefore 
likely to have poor living conditions.  In this particular case it is not possible to deal 
with this matter in planning conditions becasue third parties have control over it and 
have made clear they will not give their required consent for any necessary 
alterations to the extract equipment.  Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Local 
Plan and Alterations Policy DBE9, which is consistent with the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

WAY FORWARD

A revised proposal that provides for a demonstrably reliable means of refuse storage that, 
preferably does not rely on mechanical compaction of waste, and which also provides for a 
demonstrably achievable means of mitigating exposure of the dwellings to unpleasant odours, is 
likely to address the Council’s objections to the proposal.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574714


Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/0749/15

SITE ADDRESS: 2A Summerfield Road 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4QD

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of a front boundary wall with metal railing above with a 
combined height of 1.8m. Metal automated sliding gate. (Amended 
design to EPF/2973/14).

DECISION: Refuse Permission 

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574797

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of its height and detailed design, the proposed front boundary treatment 
would appear excessively over-dominant and fail to respect its setting.  As a 
consequence, the proposal would be harmful to the character and appearance of the 
locality.  Moreover, should consent be given for the proposal it would be a material 
consideration of significant weight in favour of other similarly harmful development in 
the locality, which would exacerbate the harm caused.  Accordingly, the proposal is 
contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policies CP2 (iv) and DBE1 which are 
consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework.

WAY FORWARD

A proposal of much reduced height, approximately 1 metre in height, is likely to address the 
Council’s objections to the proposal.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574797


Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/0891/15

SITE ADDRESS: 2 The Greens Close 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1QE

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Johns

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

First floor side extension. New front porch. Conversion of garage 
into habitable room. Single storey rear extension with 1 no. roof 
lantern.  

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=575175

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=575175


Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No: EPF/1051/15

SITE ADDRESS: 78 Princes Road 
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5DZ

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Ground and first floor rear extensions.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=575693

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=575693


AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH

29 July 2015

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION

PAGE

1. EPF/0679/15 160 Manor Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5PX

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

26

2. EPF/0704/15 Pre-school day nursery
3 Church Hill 
Loughton 
Essex
IG10 1QP

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions)

34

3. EPF/0912/15 12 Shelley Grove
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1BY

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions)

38

4. EPF/1072/15 46/48 Roebuck Lane
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5QX

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions)

42

5. EPF/1084/15 The Grange 
75 High Road 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6DL

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions)

46

6. EPF/1201/15 Hillview 
28 Vicarage Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6LS

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions)

52

7. EPF/1309/15 13 Queens Road 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5BZ

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions)

56

8. EPF/1335/15 236 High Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1RB

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

64



123

 

69.5m

70.1m

71.9m

5

6

8

1

13

11

3

2

15

146

152

11

1

10

79

52

172

174

El Sub Sta

60

77

81

79

64

69

34

160

164

35

65

46

Millbrook

1 to 14

51

8

156

9

49

Manor
Hall

7 to 10

1 
to

 6

DACRE CLOSE

DACRE GARDENS

STA
N

W
Y

C
K

 D
R

IV
E

M
O

U
N

T PLEASAN
T RO

AD

MANOR ROAD

Posts

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 1

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0679/15

Site Name: 160 Manor Road
Chigwell, IG7 5PX

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/0679/15

SITE ADDRESS: 160 Manor Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5PX

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Grange Hill

APPLICANT: Mr Raheel Akhtar

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of building to 
accommodate four two-bedroomed flats with associated bin store, 
bicycle store and car parking. (Revised design from EPF/2902/14)

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574615

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 
Site location plan
NMEF/14/01
NMEF/14/02
NMEF/14/03
NMEF/14/04
NMEF/14/05
NMEF/14/06
NMEF/14/07
NMEF/14/08
NMEF/14/09
NMEF/14/10
NMEF/14/11
NMEF/14/12
NMEF/14/13
NMEF/14/20
NMEF/14/21
NMEF/14/22

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574615


4 Prior to first occupation of the development, the proposed private drive shall be 
constructed to a minimum width of 5 metres for at least 6 metres from the the back 
of the carriageway and provided with an appropriate dropped kerb crossing of the 
footway.

5 Prior to first occupation fo the development, the developer shall be responsible for 
the provision - per dwelling - and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by the local planning authorty.

6 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres fo the highway boundary.

7 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the highway.

8 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.  

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered.

9 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

10 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.



11 An assessment of flood risk, focussing on surface water drainage, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement 
of the development. The assessment shall demonstrate compliance with the 
principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). The development shall be 
carried out and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

12 Prior to demolition of the existing bungalow on the site, full written details of a 
permeable surface to the parking area outside the building shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Such surface treatment as 
approved shall be implemented concurrently with the construction of the flats hereby 
approved and made available for use prior to first occupation of any flat hereby 
approved and be retained thereafter.

This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – 
Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).)

Description of Site:

Detached bungalow with front dormer.  It is not Listed, nor in a Conservation Area.  

The bungalow is set between a two-storey house to the left hand side when viewing the site from 
Manor Road and a three-storey building with roof accommodation to the right hand side. The front 
boundary of the site has a brick wall with railings above. The site has a vehicular access to the left 
hand side of the plot. The bungalow is set on ground somewhat higher than the level of Manor 
Road. To the rear of the bungalow the ground level falls.

Description of Proposal: 

Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of new building to accommodate four two-
bedroomed flats. 

The building would appear as two-storey plus a mansard type roof on the front elevation with a 
ramp leading down to a sunken parking area with accommodation set behind. On the rear 
elevation the building would appear as three full storeys plus the mansard type roof.

The building would have a footprint 12m wide, leaving a 1m isolation space from both side 
boundaries, by 26m deep. The front elevation would have a maximum height of 9m, 12m on the 
rear elevation.

In addition to the four car parking spaces at basement level, four car parking spaces would be 
provided in front of the building. The existing vehicular access would be used for the flats. 
Landscaping would be provided around the edges of the parking area and in between the parking 
area and the front of the flats.

Each flat would be on two floors of accommodation. Flats 1 and 2 would occupy what would be the 
ground floor at the rear of the building and have a terrace/large balcony area at what would be first 
floor level at the rear of the building. Flats 3 and 4 would have sizeable balconies at what would be 
second floor level at the rear of the building.



Relevant History:

EPF/2902/14 - Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of building to accommodate four two-
bedroomed flats with associated bin store, bicycle store and car parking. – Withdrawn 28/01/2015

Policies Applied:

Local Plan:-
CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
H2A                 Previously Developed Land
H3A                 Housing Density
DBE1               Design of New Buildings
DBE2               Effect on Neighbouring Properties
DBE6              Car parking in New Development
DBE8              Private Amenity Space
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
LL11               Landscaping Schemes
ST4                Road Safety
ST6                Vehicle Parking 

Essex Design Guide SPD
ECC Revised Parking Standards (2009) SPD

NPPF

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted. 42
Site notice posted: No, not required.

Responses received:  

8 DACRE CLOSE: objects to the proposal on the grounds of concern at scale of excavations that 
would be necessary to create the lower ground floor, willow tree on rear boundary may be 
adversely affected and its loss could lead to ground heave, an underground water source could be 
affected leading to problems to residents. 

9 DACRE CLOSE: objects to the proposal on the grounds of the site is located at the top of a very 
steep slope of heavy clay subsoil and is prone to flooding following prolonged rain such that the 
development could lead to damage to properties on Dacre Close, flats would destroy my privacy, 
would put additional strain on already over-stretched local services, would contribute to the 
destruction of the unique and beautiful character of Chigwell.

152 MANOR ROAD: objects to the proposal on the grounds of the development not being 
appropriate to the area, the building would be bulky and detract from the beauty of the area, too 
many properties have been developed as flats in the area.

158 MANOR ROAD: objects to the proposal on the grounds of the development having a serious 
impact on our standard of living, would have an overbearing, intrusive and dominating impact on 
us, insufficient parking spaces will adversely affect the amenity of surrounding properties.

PARISH COUNCIL: No objection. However, concern expressed about the permeability of the 
materials to be used to surface the forecourt area.

Revised Plans submitted during the course of the Planning Application:-



PARISH COUNCIL: No objection. However, concern expressed about the permeability of the 
materials to be used to surface the forecourt area.

158 MANOR ROAD – Object, serious impact on our standard of living, would have an overbearing, 
intrusive and dominating impact on us, insufficient parking spaces will adversely affect the amenity 
of surrounding properties.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The revised application, following the withdrawal of the previous larger proposed development, 
has attempted to overcome Officer previous concerns that the development would have been an 
unneighbourly form of development in respect of its impact on the rear elevation of neighbouring 
properties. The revised plans have clarified the relationship between the proposal and the 
neighbouring buildings either side in respect of level changes, which the applicant’s agent has 
justified through the submission of a technical light impact report and reduced depth at the rear.   

Design and Appearance
The existing bungalow on the site would appear to date from the 1950’s and now appears as a 
somewhat incongruous building set between the two-storey with hipped roof built form at 158 and 
the substantial built form at Millbrook Court, of three full storeys and roof with front dormers. The 
front wall of the proposed building would be slightly forward of the front wall of the house at 158 
Manor Road but not as far forward into its plot as the nearest front wall of Millbrook Court. The 
appearance of the building, which appears to have been inspired by classical design, would fit well 
between built forms on adjoining plots and whilst this is a proposal of some depth, it is masked by 
the presence of the buildings on either side and therefore will have little visual impact. The building 
will in fact visually enhance this part of the street scene.  At the rear, the visual impact will be 
similar to the large flat development next door at Millbrook, however, there are no public views and 
the houses in Dacre Gardens to the north are a significant distance away. 

The proposal in design and scale, conforms to the character of the area and improves on the 
appearance of the current building on the site, complying with the NPPF requirement of good 
design in planning and Local Plan policies CP2 and DBE1.  

Amenity Impact – 158 Manor Road

With regard to the living conditions of neighbours, 158 Manor Road is to the west by southwest of 
the proposed flats. The principal windows of the house at 158 are to the front and to the rear. At 
the rear, both the proposed building and 158 would be 1m from their common side boundary which 
is marked by a close boarded fence some 2m in height. The lower ground floor, despite extending 
rearwards by 9.6m beyond the main wall of no.158, will be directly below the bottom of the dividing 
fence and therefore not visible from no.158. 

The ground floor at the rear (level in height to the ground floor of no.158) would be 6.5 m deeper 
into the plot than the main rearmost ground floor wall of no. 158 but set some 2.5m inside of the 
side boundary fence and therefore 4.5m in from their nearest ground floor rear facing window. This 
distance and the fact there is a 2m boundary screen, will not result in harm to the amenity of 
no.158. 

The proposed first floor will be at the same height of the first floor of no.158 and project 3.6m 
beyond but at a distance of 5.5m from their first floor window. The arrangement is such that the 
first floor rear windows of no. 158 would not cut a 45 degree line, which is a rule of thumb in 
respect of impact on outlook from neighbours. The proposed mansard shape second floor would 
be the same depth beyond no.158’s roof (which has rear facing dormers) and also not cause harm 
to light or outlook. .



Proposed sight screens, of opaque glass, will prevent overlooking from the proposed terraces and 
the first floor balcony at the rear. Whilst the new building will visually project rearwards at first and 
second floor level as viewed from no.158, the 45 degree rule of thumb measure will be maintained. 
This neighbour will not be significantly overlooked, particularly given the existing and proposed 
screening. It is therefore considered that the amenity of no.158 will not be unduly harmed and it 
therefore complies with the NPPF and policies DBE2 and DBE9 of the Local Plan. 

Amenity Impact – Millbrook Court

To the east, the four storey flatted development at Millbrook Court is set 5m from the side 
boundary. The proposed built form above the ground floor storey would not cut into a line drawn at 
45 degrees from the face of the windows at ground and first floors on the rear of Millbrook Court. 
Again, the revised rear elevation relative to Millbrook has clarified the relationship between the two 
properties and there will be no loss of light or outlook. 

Other Amenity Impact

An open rear amenity area some 35m in depth would be retained between the proposed building 
and the rear boundary with properties on Dacre Close. The proposal would safeguard the living 
conditions of neighbours.

Other Matters

This application follows concerns expressed by officers about the previous design with regard to 
the dominance of parking provision within the streetscene. This current design has “softened” the 
appearance of the area between the building and the plot frontage by significant strips of 
landscaping and a visually meaningful extent of landscaping between the car park and the front of 
the building. The comment made by the Parish Council regarding some form of sustainable urban 
drainage to the parking area is supported and will be addressed by condition.

Eight car parking spaces would be provided for the four flats, which meet the standards adopted 
by the Council.

With regard to comments made by local residents in Dacre Gardens, engineering works would be 
required but a standard condition regarding any spoil to be removed from site would anticipate any 
problem in this regard. Given the comment provided by local residents, a condition to require a 
hydrological assessment does not seem unreasonable, such an assessment is almost standard for 
development involving basements. As Thames Water have not objected to the flat development, 
refusal would be deemed unreasonable.

Comments made with regard to the aesthetics of the proposal are not supported; the proposal 
would have a good appearance within its setting. Similarly the proposal is considered to be 
acceptable with regard to impact to neighbours and car parking as referred to above.

Conclusion:

The proposal complies with relevant planning policy and the proposed building will enhance the 
appearance of the street scene without causing undue harm to amenity of acknowledged 
importance. It is recommended that planning permission be granted. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:



Planning Application Case Officer: Jonathan Doe
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



123

 

41.5m

43.0m

46.0m46.0m

43.0m

41.5m

39.0m

45.4m

39.0m

45.4m

1a

Fielding Court

1 
to

 6

8

15

7

1a

Fielding Court

1 
to

 6

8

38

46

33

21

15

17

30

26

9

11

32

28

38

7

1818

19 17
19 17

3

1818

8

PH

1

2

5

7

14

7

11
15

9
7

11
15

9

15

21

19

PH

21

19

3

23

3

1

23

1

25

27

22
 to

 2
8

2

27

25

22
 to

 2
8

2

18b

18
a

18b

18
a

28
4

1

4

G
ov

t O
ffi

ce
s

Club

Club

Club

Club

15

1

14

11

1

14

11

33

46

21

2

2a

2

2a

11

15

17

9

12
14

22

10

14

22

12

10

33

5

4

1

5

4

1

26
2424

30
32

28

7

8

PH

3

PH

1

15

2

5

14

28
4

1

4

G
ov

t O
ffi

ce
s

H
IG

H
 R

O
AD

K
IN

G
'S

 G
R

EE
N

CHURCH H
IL

L

H
IG

H
 R

O
AD

K
IN

G
'S

 G
R

EE
N

CHURCH H
IL

L

YORK CRESCENT

YORK CRESCENT

War

Tennis Courts

MS

Cricket Ground

Memorial

Cricket Ground

MS

Memorial
War

Tennis Courts

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 2

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0704/15

Site Name: Pre-school day nursery, 3 Church 
Hill 
Loughton, IG10 1QP

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/0704/15

SITE ADDRESS: Pre-school day nursery
3 Church Hill 
Loughton 
Essex
IG10 1QP

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT: Mrs K Hersey

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of timber shed/summerhouse alongside existing shed in 
front garden for use as staff rest area.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574683

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Before the outbuilding hereby approved is first occupied two 'extra heavy standard' 
trees, either Hornbeam or Liquidambar, shall be planted close to the front boundary 
fence of the site. If these trees die or are removed within 5 years of planting then 
they shall be replaced with a similar size and specie of tree.

3 The outbuilding hereby approved shall only be used as a staff rest room. It shall not 
be used as an additional classroom or playroom for children.

4 The timber cladding on the outbuilding hereby approved shall be stained in a dark 
brown colour.

This application is before this Committee because  the recommendation for approval is contrary to 
a) more than two objections received from neighbours, and b) contrary to an objection from the 
Town Council, which are material to the planning merits of the proposal,  - (pursuant to the 
constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, schedule 1, appendix 
A (f) and (g)).  

Description of Site:

A detached two storey property located on the north side of the junction of Church Hill with The 
Uplands. The property was formerly a house but following planning approval in 2011 it has been 
used as a pre school day nursery since its opening in August 2012. The locality is mainly 
residential but there are some commercial uses on the opposite side of Church Hill - together with 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=574683


a new block of flats that has recently been built. The property is not listed nor does it lie in a 
conservation area.

Description of Proposal:

Erection of timber shed outbuilding alongside existing shed in front garden, for use as a staff rest 
room.

Relevant History: 
 
EPF/2102/11 – Approval granted for change of use of dwelling to a pre school day nursery. 

Since 2011 there have been several approvals for signage, and alterations and extensions to this 
pre school day nursery. In addition planning permission was granted in 21013 for an ‘extension’ of 
this pre school nursery into the nearby Loughton cricket club building on Mondays to Fridays, the 
site of  which also provides spaces for car parking and ‘setting down’ of children.
 
Policies Applied:

DBE9 – Loss of amenity. 
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for landscape retention.        
National Planning Policy Framework.

Summary of Representations:

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – The Committee objected to the intensification of the site, the 
positioning of the summerhouse flush with the boundary fence, the roof of which would be visible 
from Church Hill, and the removal of a tree to accommodate it. 

NEIGHBOURS – 12 properties consulted and 4 replies received:-.

7,CHURCH HILL  - object – it will increase the problem of parking in The Uplands, because with 
this building work there will be inevitably be more kids.
 
8, CHURCH HILL – object – I live opposite and my front windows look over the nursery and 
another build would be unsightly and the removal of trees even more so.
 
5, CHURCH HILL – object – there is already a shed there which appears to not be used, and if 
another shed is built then another tree will be lost. There are too many structures on the site as it 
is, and another shed will give more space for staff and children to gather outside, close to our 
house further disturbing our peace.

LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION PLANS GROUP – object – having the back of the shed 
facing Church Hill seems wrong but if the District Council is minded to approve we feel conditions 
should be imposed to require that planting is carried out to screen that part of the shed visible 
above the boundary fence, and that hours of construction are limited. 

EFDC TREES SECTION – we have no objection to the application. The tree that would be 
removed is not a suitable candidate for a TPO – although it would be preferable to find an 
alternative location for the new building. 

Issues and Considerations:

This application for a staff rest room follows on from a  2014 site inspection by the Council’s 
Environmental Health officer who suggested the small kitchen/staff room was too small and hot, 



and that the kitchen could be enlarged to create more air flows. It is therefore proposed to erect 
the proposed outbuilding, measuring 3.85m in width by 2.9m in depth, and 2.4m in height, for use 
as a staff rest room so that the kitchen area can be enlarged. The proposed location adjoins 
another shed close to the front boundary of the site, and it would have been undesirable to site the 
building in front of the principal elevation facing The Uplands.

The proposed shed would project above the height of the front boundary fence by about 0.5/0.6m.  
Although a photograph and elevation submitted with the application shows the timber cladding to 
be a light colour an accompanying letter states that the timber cladding would be stained with a 
dark colour. This use of dark stain has since been confirmed by the applicant, and its use would 
also be required by a condition on any grant of consent. Although having a shed close to the front 
boundary is not ideal in visual terms the fact that only a small part of it would be viewed above the 
fence, and that it will be finished in a dark stain similar to the fence, means that it would not 
significantly detract from visual amenity in the street scene.

The erection of the outbuilding would result in the removal of a tree from the site. This is to be 
regretted - although the tree is not a particularly good specimen. The applicant is however 
agreeable to planting of two replacement trees close to this front boundary – these would be extra 
heavy standards, for instance Hornbeam or Liquidambar, and they would adequately compensate 
for the loss of the existing tree.

Another concern raised by the Town Council and objectors relates to the intensification in use of 
the site. However the proposed outbuilding is only to be used by existing staff in this pre school 
nursery, and a condition will prohibit its use as a further classroom or play room. 

Conclusions:

This is a well used pre school nursery in an accessible location that provides a significant number 
of jobs as well as providing a local service. The concerns of neighbours about further expansion of 
child numbers are acknowledged but this application instead provides for better kitchen facilities 
and a new staff room. For this reason, and others set out in the report above it is recommended 
that conditional permission be granted. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 



123

 

46.6m

46.9m46.9m

46.6m

28

27

28

27

16

9

16

9

1515

14

1

16

12

14

16

12

1

47

46

5

47

46

5

36

34

36

34

1414

2424

SPARELEAZE HILL

SHELLEY G
ROVE

SPARELEAZE HILL

SHELLEY G
ROVE

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 3

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0912/15

Site Name: 12 Shelley Grove
Loughton, IG10 1BY

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/0912/15

SITE ADDRESS: 12 Shelley Grove
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1BY

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs K Polworth

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed rear and side extensions and summerhouse at the 
bottom of garden. Revision to EPF/1240/14. Proposed new steeper 
pitched roof and increase in height of the summerhouse at the 
bottom of the garden area. 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (with conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=575222

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A. (g))

Description of Site:

This is a large two-storey detached dwelling house located to the south-east side of a cul-de-sac 
that serves similar properties in this part of Loughton. The application site is not listed or in a 
conservation area.  Land falls sharply away significantly from the back of the house, which has a 
generous rear garden, beyond which are larger gardens of houses on Spareleaze Hill.  Land also 
falls to the south-west and rises to the north-east. It therefore implies that the proposed 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=575222


summerhouse would be situated on significantly lower ground levels to the bottom of the rear 
garden area in relation to the application site and properties in the surrounding area.

Description of Proposal: 

EPF/1240/14 showed that the summerhouse as approved would have a shallow pitched gable roof 
form with a maximum height of 3.4 metres. It is now proposed in the current application to replace 
the previously approved shallow pitched gable roof with a new steeper pitched gable roof, and also 
to increase the overall height of the summerhouse to 4.1 metres from ground floor level to the 
ridge top. The siting of the summerhouse would remain unchanged in that it would be 2 metres 
from the rear garden boundary and 2 metres from the side garden boundaries. 

Relevant History:

EPF/1248/98 Single-storey rear extension to attached garage -Approved
EPF/1240/14: Proposed rear and side extensions and summerhouse at the bottom of the garden –
Permission granted with conditions. 
EPF/1425/15:  Non-material amendment to EPF/1240/14 (Proposed rear and side extensions and 
summerhouse at the bottom of garden) –Refused.

Policies Applied:

Local Plan:- 
CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
DBE10 Residential Extensions

NPPF (March 2012).

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:  

Number of neighbours consulted:  6.
Site notice posted:  No, not required.
Responses received:  No response received from neighbours.

TOWN COUNCIL:  Objected to the steeper pitched roof of the summerhouse on the grounds of its 
visual intrusion on the neighbours.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issues for consideration in this case are:

-Whether harm would be caused to the character and appearance of the existing building, the 
street scene and the wider locality;

- Whether harm would be caused to the living conditions of neighbouring residents. 

Impact on the character and appearance

In terms of design, there are numerous examples of two storey buildings with steeper gable 
pitched or hipped roof forms within the locality, many of which are situated on significantly higher 
ground level. It is therefore not considered that the increase in height and alterations to the roof 
form would result in the summerhouse appearing out of character. Moreover, the proposed 
summerhouse would be located at a significantly lower ground level to the south-east in relation to 



the application property and surrounding buildings, so the additional roof height would not result in 
the summerhouse being taller than any building within the locality. 

The proposed summerhouse would be located to the rear of the application site, so there will be 
no consequence to the appearance of the street scene. Furthermore, some properties within the 
vicinity have rear conservatories or extensions or existing rear outbuildings constructed with old 
timber materials. The design of the proposed summerhouse and the materials to be used would 
take into account the local aesthetics and the proposal is considered appropriate in size and scale 
that would complement the appearance of the application site and the rear part of the surrounding 
properties.  It would therefore be in keeping with the character of the area and be complementary 
to its locality and application site.

Impact on the Neighbouring Amenities
 
The proposed summerhouse would be located on significantly lower ground level to the bottom of 
the rear garden area. It would be situated approximately 30 metres from the main building and a 
similar distance away from any neighbouring property within the locality, including those at the 
rear. It is therefore not considered that the impact from the proposed steeper pitched gable roof 
form and a net increase in the height of the summerhouse by 0.7 metres would be harmful to the 
visual amenities or any form of residential amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of any neighbouring 
property.

Conclusion:

The alterations to the roof form and increase in the height of the proposed summerhouse would 
not detract from the established character and appearance of the host property, the surrounding 
area and the street scene. It would have an acceptable impact upon the living conditions enjoyed 
by the occupiers of neighbouring properties. This proposed therefore is in accordance with the 
aforementioned policies of the adopted Local Plan and guidance in the NPPF. Accordingly, it is 
recommended that planning permission be granted. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Moses Ekole
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 56 4109

or if no direct contact can be made please email:  contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

mailto:contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


123

 

57.0m

58.8m

69.5m

The Coach House

22a

Churchills

38

5759

65

Th
e 

La
ur

el
s

1

75

71
22

73

26

Sub Sta

24

73a

52

25

19

16

11

Roebuck

64

79

Heights1 
to

 2
0

28

El Sub Sta

32

2

6a
6

15

4b 4a

17

19

4

40
42

1

44

5

34

48

42a

7

El Sub Sta

2

4

2a

6062

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

O
A

D

ROEBUCK LANE

LUCTONS AVENUE

LB

LB

*

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 4

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/1072/15

Site Name: 46/48 Roebuck Lane
Buckhurst Hill, IG9 5QX

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/1072/15

SITE ADDRESS: 46/48 Roebuck Lane
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5QX

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

APPLICANT: Mr K Fox

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed new wrought iron sliding gates and brick piers with 
wrought iron railings 2m high for No. 46 and 48 Roebuck Lane.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=575753

CONDITIONS

1 The development shall be implemented and maintained thereafter in red brick and 
black wrought iron railings as indicated in the submission documentation, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

The application site comprises a double residential plot for numbers 46 and 48 Roebuck Lane on 
the southern side of Roebuck Lane, close to its junction with the High Road.  

Two new detached dwellings have recently been constructed as permitted under EPF/0201/14.

Description of Proposal:

The proposal seeks permission for the erection of new brick piers and dwarf wall with railings 
above to the boundary across the front of the two properties. Works were near completed at the 
time of the site inspection.

In total the railings and piers would span 31m across the front of the properties, the brick piers 
would vary in height due to changing ground levels, but would reach 1.9m at the maximum, with 
railing inserts reaching 2m at the highest point when measured from ground level.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=575753


Any boundary treatment adjacent a highway that is greater in height than 1m requires planning 
permission.

Relevant History:

EPF/0119/14 – Prior notification for demolition of dwelling – Prior Approval not required
EPF/0201/14 – Erection of two dwellings – Approved
EPF/1245/14 – Application for approval of details reserved by condition – Details Approved

Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE1 – Design of new buildings
DBE9 – Impact on Amenity

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight. 

Summary of Representations:

BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL: Object: Out of keeping with local streetscene. Wrought 
iron railings are too high.

5 Neighbours consulted: 5 responses received as follows:

64, 65, 71, ROEBUCK LANE AND 27 STRADBROKE GROVE (BUCKHURST HILL RESIDENTS 
SOCIETY): Object. Proposals are excessive, out of keeping and will span 2 plots. Will appear as a 
block of flats, school or crematorium. Impact to property value. Will result in bins on pavements, 
impacting pedestrians. Design and detailing of piers and railings dominates street scene, 
proposals would compound the visual harm from the development for two houses. Proposals could 
set a precedent for further similar developments. Will spoil appearance of dwellings behind, no 
great benefit to security than lower railings.

73 ROEBUCK LANE: No objection as long as does not exceed 2m. Similar to recent approval at 
number 50.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with this proposal relate to design and impact on amenity.

Design
The proposal is of a design and scale akin to that constructed at 50 Roebuck Lane, therefore in 
design terms no concerns are raised. Many properties in the District erect higher boundaries along 
the front elevation, and this would not appear out of keeping in this area. Whilst the surrounding 
area generally comprises lower or open boundaries, higher front boundaries are evident in the 
immediate area of either a near identical design on the adjacent plot, or higher timber close board 
fences on other properties.

The proposals would maintain a significant open aspect by way of the nature of railings being 
visually permeable.



Officers have considered the immediate locality in terms of street scene and consider that while 
the proposals will result in a continuous length of pillars and railings across three plots, this is not 
in itself unacceptable, and the character of the wider area would not be unduly harmed. Examples 
of similar boundary treatments are easily available across the wider District.

Amenity
The proposal would be visible from neighbouring properties, but would not detract from outlook 
available, overshadowing neighbouring properties significantly detract from neighbouring living 
conditions.

Neighbouring objections are noted, however mostly these issues relate to character and street 
scene as assessed above. The railings are 2m in height at some points, however a similar 
structure is already permitted on the neighbouring plot.

Highways
The County Team have commented on the application and have no concerns to raise.

Conclusion:

The proposal is considered an acceptable design, following the appearance of the neighbouring 
property and there are no significant amenity concerns and therefore approval is recommended.  

  

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jenny Cordell
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564481

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



123

 

59.7m

57

59

St Johns School Pavilion

81

65

42

40

75

Hunters

Haylands
Cottage

Haylands

8

Sandon
Lodge

8991

1

15

9 t
o 1

4

21

GREEN LANE

BRAMBLE CLOSE

H
IG

H
 R

O
A

D

Ponds

Pond

Pond

MP

Tennis Court

ESS

ESS

Tennis Courts

Chigwell

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 5

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/1084/15

Site Name: The Grange, 75 High Road 
Chigwell, IG7 6DL

Scale of Plot: 1/2500



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/1084/15

SITE ADDRESS: The Grange 
75 High Road 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6DL

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Chigwell Village

APPLICANT: Mr S Isaacs

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Application for variation of condition 8 (removal of existing 
buildings prior to construction) on planning application 
EPF/1057/13 (Demolition of 4 no. vehicle sales, repairs and 
restoration buildings and replacement with 1 no. detached 
dwelling). To allow partial demolition on completion of 
development.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=575774

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than 21 July 2016.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: DHA/7615/01; OV/DB/SI/02; OV/DB/SI/01 conceptual 
(revised scheme).

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=575774


establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

5 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Class A to E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

7 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

8 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the existing 
workshop shown to be demolished on drawing number OV/DB/SI/02 shall be 
demolished entirely and all resultant debris removed from site. Upon completion of 
the dwelling, prior to first occupation, the garage and office shown on drawing 
number OV/DB/SI/02 shall be demolished entirely and all resultant debris removed 
from site.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

The application site comprises land within the garden of The Grange, 75 High Road and also land 
which is lawfully used for the operation of a business, Thoroughbred Cars, which sells, restores 
and repairs classic cars.  The site has an existing gated access from the road which leads from the 
High Road into the Grange Farm development.  

The whole application site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  

Description of Proposal:

The proposal seeks permission to vary condition 8 (removal of existing buildings prior to 
construction) of planning approval EPF/1057/13 (Demolition of 4x vehicle sales, repairs and 
restoration buildings and replacement with single dwelling).



Relevant History:

EPF/0178/12 - Demolition of vehicle sales, repairs and restoration buildings and replacement with 
1 no. detached dwelling - Approved

EPF/1057/13 - Demolition of 4 no. vehicle sales, repairs and restoration buildings and replacement 
with 1 no. detached dwelling. (Revisions to dwelling approved under EPF/0178/12.) – Approved

Other applications relate to variation of drawings and approval of details reserved by conditions.

Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
CP3 – New Developments
DBE1/4 – Design of New Buildings
DBE2/9 – Amenity of Neighbouring Properties
DBE8 – Private Amenity Space
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt
GB7A – Development Conspicuous from the Green Belt
ST4 – Road Safety
ST6 – Vehicle Parking
LL1 – Rural Landscape Character, Appearance and Use
LL10 – Retained Landscaping
LL11 – Landscaping Schemes

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight. 

Summary of Representations:

Notification of this application was sent to Chigwell Parish Council and to 6 neighbouring 
properties. No neighbours have commented.

CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL  The Council OBJECTS to this application on the grounds it can 
see no valid reason for removal of the condition.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with this proposal relate directly to the condition applied.

Condition 8 applied to EPF/1057/13 is worded as follows:

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, all buildings shown to be 
demolished on Drawing Number OV/DB/SI/02 shall be demolished entirely and all resultant debris 
removed from the site.  

Reason: To preserve the openness of the Metropolitan Green Belt.  



The reason for applying the condition was predominantly as the new dwelling was assessed on 
the basis of the loss of the floor space from the existing buildings on site. Essentially the existing 
buildings were traded for the proposed dwelling.

It would also be inappropriate for an operating car related use to be located in such close proximity 
to a residence.

The applicant now seeks to vary this condition, to allow the existing garage and office to be 
retained during construction for welfare facilities for the site operatives.

The applicant suggests revising the condition to:

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the existing workshop shown to 
be demolished on drawing number OV/DB/SI/02 shall be demolished entirely and all resultant 
debris removed from site. Upon completion of the dwelling, prior to first occupation, the garage 
and office shown on drawing number OV/DB/SI/02 shall be demolished entirely and all resultant 
debris removed from site.

Reason: To preserve the openness of the Metropolitan Green Belt.  

Officers are of the view that the long term objective of maintaining the openness of the Green Belt 
would still be achieved with the proposed varied wording, and that temporary welfare facilities 
would be reduced/avoided during construction with the proposed retention of the garage and office 
until completion of the dwelling. Therefore Officers are satisfied the revised condition would 
achieve the required result, remain enforceable and be appropriate to the development. 

The Parish Council appeared concerned that the applicant sought to remove the condition. This is 
not the case and reassurance has been provided following these comments by way of email, to 
emphasis the reason for variation provided on the application form.

Conclusion:

The proposed variation of condition is considered acceptable. The proposals would still accord 
with Green Belt policies and there would simply be a short term temporary retention of two of the 
buildings on site during construction. These would be removed prior to occupation. Officers 
recommend approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jenny Cordell
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564481

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



123

 

53.6m

Da
le

sid
e

Bu
rc

ro
ft

W
in

de
rm

er
e

Windrush

Greenacres

12

10

Wetheral

Long Meadow

Aingarth

5

3

Hillview

48

45

The Willows

46

33

50

4

1

Sub Sta

Dunton House
Little

 Orchard

Brim
ure

El

56

7

PARKLANDS
CLOSE

LINGMERE CLOSE

Drain

Dr
ai

n

Allotment Gardens

Path (um)

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 6

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/1201/15

Site Name: Hillview, 28 Vicarage Lane 
Chigwell, IG7 6LS

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/1201/15

SITE ADDRESS: Hillview 
28 Vicarage Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6LS

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Chigwell Village

APPLICANT: Mrs Tina Chopra

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Outbuilding in rear garden.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=576358

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The outbuilding hereby approved shall only be used for purposes incidental to the 
dwelling house on the site. It shall not be used for primary residential 
accommodation, for example as a living room, bedroom or kitchen and shall not be 
used for any business or commercial purposes at any time.

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

The application site is a two storey detached dwellinghouse located on the west side of Vicarage 
Lane on the edge of the built up area of Chigwell.  The rear garden is some 37m in depth and 20m 
wide and the rear garden backs onto the side garden of 43 Meadow Way.  The site is not within 
the Metropolitan Green Belt or a Conservation Area. 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=576358


Description of Proposal:

The proposal seeks permission for a single storey outbuilding measuring 10m wide, a maximum of 
6.6m in depth and with a ridge height of 4m.  The eaves height is 2.5m.  The outbuilding will be 
located within 0.5m of the rear boundary of the garden.   

Relevant History:

None relevant

Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE10 – Design of Residential Extensions
DBE9 – Impact on Amenity

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight. 

Summary of Representations:

CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL: The Council OBJECTS to this application on the ground of the 
impact on the amenity of neighbours.  

4 Neighbours consulted: 

THE WILLOWS, VICARAGE LANE (Letter from Ronald Fletcher Baker LLP on behalf of owner): 
Objection – use of the word ‘shed’ on plans is a misnomer, loss of privacy, overall bulk of shed, 
general loss of amenity, adverse effect on streetscene, covenant on land restricting bungalows.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with this proposal relate to design and impact on amenity.

Design
The proposal is for a large outbuilding within the rear garden but is not out of the ordinary within a 
garden of this size.  It is a relatively standard design and considered generally acceptable.  

The neighbour has objected due to the impact on the streetscene, however it will not be visible 
from the road and although large is considered in scale with the size of the dwellinghouse with a 
good separation from the surrounding properties.  

Amenity
The proposal is located some 5m from the side boundaries and some 30m plus from the rear walls 
of the neighbouring houses either side (The Willows and Aingarth).  It is not considered to impact 
on these properties in terms of loss of light or outlook given this substantial distance.  It will be 
visible from these properties (particularly from first floor windows) but is not considered to result in 
any loss of privacy beyond that which may occur from an occupier of Hillview standing in this part 
of the garden.  

The proposal is very close to the rear boundary of the property which backs on to the side of 43 
Meadow Way.  Although close to the shared boundary the proposal is some 25m from the rear 



wall of this property and the outbuilding is 2.5m to the eaves and then pitches away from the 
shared boundary to a maximum height of 4m and therefore it is not considered to have any 
significant impact on the amenity of this property.  

It should be noted that if the proposal were moved 2m from the rear boundary then the outbuilding 
would fall within the scope of permitted development and not require planning permission.  

Comment on representations received: 
Further to the analysis above, it is regrettable that the architect has labelled the outbuilding as a 
‘shed’ which does bring to mind a small timber garden shed.  However, the proposal was 
advertised as an outbuilding and as such referred to as an outbuilding in this report and therefore 
this description on the plans is not considered to invalidate the application process. 

A covenant or legal agreement on a property is separate to planning control.  In any event this is 
not a bungalow but an outbuilding; to avoid any further concern a condition can be added to 
ensure that it cannot be used for any primary residential accommodation or a business or 
commercial use.  

Conclusion:

The proposal is considered an acceptable design with no significant impact on amenity and 
therefore despite objections approval with conditions is recommended.  

  

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564414

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



123

 

39.6m

43.9m

32.9m

C
R

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

1 to 22

Atrium

12

62

49 to 54
59

55

to

66

58

24

El Sub Sta

Sycamore

1 to 8

3 
7

1 
5

9 
13

12

Bu
ck

hu
rs

t H
ill 

St
at

io
n

11
1

2

to

6337
to

36

31

42

67 to 69

to

to

1 
to

 8

El Sub Sta

43 to 48

9 to 20

11
 1

5
2 

6
10

 1
4

Beech
Court

4 8
12 16

51018

9

11
12

13

1

Victoria
House

8

1 to 10

Car Park

12

17

2

PH

2

PO

5

1

1

Pegasus
Court

2

11

11
a

7

18

2

1

11

13

28

27 to 43
a

20

6

13a

42 40

45

40a

45

40

27

A
LB

ER
T 

R
O

A
D

YEW CLOSE
SALISBURY GARDENS

QUEEN'S ROAD

V
IC

TO
R

IA
 R

O
A

D

BACK LANE

PRINCES
ROAD

BRIAR CLOSE

ELGAR CLOSE

TCB

Car Park

SL

SL

LB

Posts

Su
bw

ay

M
P 

10
.7

5

Car Park

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 7

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/1309/15

Site Name: 13 Queens Road 
Buckhurst Hill, IG9 5BZ

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/1309/15

SITE ADDRESS: 13 Queens Road 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5BZ

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

APPLICANT: Mr Howard Winston

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed third floor extension to form a new dwelling

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=576634

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: QR/13/02, QR/13/03, QR/13/04, QR-P-1001, QR-P-1002, 
QR-P-1003 and 14019_P_003 Rev B

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 The refuse storage facility shown on the approved plan 14019_P_003 Rev B shall 
be completed prior to the first occupation of the development and shall thereafter be 
retained free of obstruction and used for the storage of refuse and recycling only and 
for no other purpose, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers for the following reasons:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=576634


1. More than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal to be approved 
were received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation 
of Council functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).)

2. The recommendation is for approval contrary to an objection from a local council which is 
material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  
Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

The application site comprises a three-storey mid terrace building with shop premises on the 
ground floor and a one bedroom flat on each upper level that are presently being formed in the 
upper floors (planning permission ref EPF/2485/13 relates).  It is situated within the Buckhurst Hill 
District Centre as identified in the Local Plan Alterations.  The immediate locality is a mix of 
dwelling houses and three-storey buildings with ground floor shop premises and a mix of 
commercial and residential uses at upper floor.

In common with the other buildings in the terrace, a high parapet to the front elevation screens a 
butterfly roof (an inverted pitched roof) over the second floor.  The valley of the roof is 1m below 
the top of the parapet.  Brick pilasters either side of the front elevation, continuing in rendered form 
up the parapet wall, provide a visual definition of the extent of each building within the terrace and, 
at roof level, mark the position of party walls concealed by the parapet.

The building has a rear yard area that has a consent (ref EPF/1192/14) to be redeveloped to 
replace a large corrugated metal clad storage building with a two-storey, two-bedroom dwelling.  
Works to implement that permission have recently been commenced.  Beyond the rear yard is 
Pegasus Court, a block of 10 flats.

Description of Proposal: 

This application proposes the construction of a third floor in the form of a mansard roof in order to 
provide an additional one bedroom flat at the application site.  The structure would be set 
approximately 300mm rear of the party wall and have sloping front and rear walls finished in slate.  
Two dormer windows would be set in the front and rear walls, aligning with existing first and 
second floor windows below.  The structure would have a flat roof and be contained within built up 
parapet walls that match the angle of the front and rear walls of the mansard structure and extend 
subtly beyond them and above the roof.  They would have a traditional tile and brick on edge 
detail.

The new flat would be accessed directly from the street.  It would not have any dedicated off-street 
parking provision or private amenity space.

Relevant History:

EPF/2484/13 Change of use of ground floor from use for purposes within Use Class A1 (Shops) 
to use for purposes within Use Class A2 (Financial and Professional Services)
Approved

EPF/2485/13 Change of use of first and second floors from taxi offices to two flats. (Use Class 
C3) Approved

EPF/1192/14 Change of use of part ground floor from A1 (Shop) to C3 (Residential) and two 
storey dwelling to rear to replace existing single storey storage building. Approved

EPF/1851/14 Proposed frameless glass shop front and new frameless glass entrance door to flats 
on upper parts. Approved

EPF/2318/14 Proposed 3rd floor extension to form a new studio flat dwelling. Withdrawn
EPF/2899/14 Proposed third floor extension to form a studio dwelling. Re-submission following 

withdrawn application EPF/2318/14. Withdrawn



EPF/0708/15 Proposed third floor extension to form a studio dwelling. Withdrawn

Policies Applied:

Local Plan:
CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
CP7 Urban Form and Quality
DBE1 Design of New Buildings
DBE8 Private Amenity Space
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
ST6 Vehicle Parking

NPPF

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  18
Site notice posted:  Yes
Responses received:  Letters of objection received as follows:

11 QUEENS ROAD: Firstly the plans shown are wrong as they relate to the building before the 
current construction work began.  It is misleading for some of them to show the previous layout as 
this application needs to be considered as it will relate to the rest of the building which is being 
greatly extended.  This is not clear from some of the submitted plans. I object to this application on 
a number of grounds.

 It will restrict light and increase noise and footfall.
 There is already a problem with parking for residents and with no provision made more cars 

will be crowding access roads and local streets and adding to hazards to pedestrians.
 The effect on adjacent buildings is a concern as I understand that 120 year old buildings were 

not designed to have a storey added.  Problems with one building will affect its neighbours in 
the terrace.

 It will set a precedent for similar developments which will alter both the appearance and 
character of Queens Road.

 There is already a problem with refuse in that there is inadequate room for it to be stored and 
this represents a health issue as well as an eyesore.

7 PEGASUS COURT, VICTORIA ROAD: My mother lives in Pegasus Court( No 7) and is not 
alone in being extremely worried about this proposal for the following reasons:

1.  Loss of light 

2.  Losing a considerable amount of privacy as both her lounge and kitchen both overlook the back 
of the proposed extension

3.   More usage of the carpark facility belonging to Pegasus Court by either tradesmen or tenants 
either parking in one of the seven allocated Pegasus Court spaces or parking in the shared area 
making it increasingly difficult for people to manoeuvre their cars out of spaces. More use of the 
electronic security gates, more cars in and out therefore more pollution.

4.   Extra litter and rubbish being left for long periods increasing the risk of rodents 

5.   Will decrease the property prices at Pegasus Court and also make them less saleable



6.   The proposed building will not be in-keeping with the neighbouring properties

I am aware major building work is in progress at the moment and if permission is granted for the 
proposed extension then I am sure the neighbouring properties will extend too. This will have an 
extremely detrimental effect on the outlook from Pegasus Court.

(The above points 1, 2, 3, 5 and 6 were subsequently reinforced by a letter received directly from 
the occupant of 7 Pegasus Court)

9 PEGASUS COURT, VICTORIA ROAD: The site line on this small parade of six Victorian shops 
would be ruined by a higher elevation of one, setting a precedent.  The proposed higher third floor 
would impact on Pegasus Court a few feet away too, by restricting light to the residents on that 
side of the building.  A reminder too in the application that there is no car parking space available 
to the resident in the rear of the property abutting Pegasus Court.

BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL: Objection: Out of keeping with existing façade and 
architecture of parade, Setting of a precedent, Concern about secondary means of escape.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The applicant has on 3 previous occasions sought consent to erect a third floor to provide a one 
bedroom flat, but each application was withdrawn following informal design advice from the case 
officer.  The current proposal follows informal pre-application advice.  Design, sustainability, 
highway safety, refuse and other matters raised by objectors are discussed in this report.

Design:

The main issue raised by this proposal is design.  As indicated above, the proposal follows pre-
application discussion that focused primarily on this issue.  The resulting design of a mansard roof 
is one that is commonly found on similar buildings elsewhere.  Such roof additions, either as 
isolated developments or linked to similar neighbouring additions are typically found in older urban 
areas on buildings of a similar age and design, particularly in central London.  They blend in well 
with the original buildings provided they are proportionate enlargements and relate to the lower 
floors in terms of their detailed design.

In this case the slate cladding to front and rear roof slopes together with the continuation of party 
walls aligning with the pilasters of the front elevation reinforce the appearance of the roof structure 
and the visual definition of the horizontal limits of the building.  The link to the pilasters together 
with alignment of windows with those of the lower floors at both the front and rear elevations 
maintains a continuity of the vertical elements of the building.  By ensuring the structure is set rear 
of the existing parapet on the front elevation, is of limited height above the parapet (1.6m), and 
that the dormer windows are significantly smaller than windows on the lower floors the proposal 
will appear very much subordinate to the existing building.  It would therefore appear as a 
proportionate roof enlargement.

Since the proposal would be of an appropriate and proportionate scale, and be sensitively 
designed to relate to key specific elements of the design of the existing building, it is concluded the 
proposal will complement the appearance of the existing building.  It would therefore appear 
acceptable in the street scene, complementing the character and appearance of the locality.  In 
relation to the impact on the street scene, it would primarily be seen in longer views of the building 
since it is at upper level, of limited height and set rear of the existing parapet.



Sustainability, Highway Safety and Living Conditions:

The application site is situated within one of the higher order District shopping areas, 
approximately 200m from Buckhurst Hill Underground Station and within 100m of a substantial 
supermarket.  It is also situated approximately 200m from Knighton Wood.  A large pay and 
display car park is situated on the opposite side of Queens Road.  Having regard to these facts it 
is concluded that the application site is in a highly sustainable location, well served by public 
transport and within easy pedestrian access of shopping facilities and significant public open 
space.

Consequently, the absence of any dedicated off-street parking provision or private amenity space 
provision would not result in poor living conditions for the flat.  The absence of any parking 
provision in this location would also not result in any harmful consequence for the interests of 
highway safety or the amenity and functioning of neighbouring commercial and residential uses.  
Accordingly, there is no justification for withholding consent on the basis of the absence of off-
street parking or private amenity space provision.

The relationship of the proposed flat to neighbouring dwellings is such that no excessive 
overlooking would arise since the only building potentially overlooked is Pegasus Court and a 
distance of at least 24m would separate the rear elevation of the proposed flat and Pegasus Court.  
No excessive disturbance to the approved second floor flat would be caused by the new dwelling 
and no loss of light would be caused to any neighbour.

Refuse:

Refuse storage and collection was the subject of pre-application discussion between the Applicant 
and the Council’s Waste Management Team.  The applicant draws attention to provision being 
made in the rear elevation of the approved dwellinghouse within the rear yard area.  While not 
ideal due to the need to walk an unusual distance to store refuse, that arrangement is identical for 
the approved flats at first and second floors of the building and is considered to be preferable to 
storage within the building and depositing refuse sacks on the footway each waste collection day.  
Since the refuse storage arrangements are previously approved and in accordance with the advice 
of the Waste Management Team there is no basis for resisting this proposal on the matter of 
refuse storage.

Other matters:

The Parish Council are concerned about the potential for any consent given to act as a precedent 
in favour of other similar development.  It would certainly be a material consideration of significant 
weight, particularly in respect of similar development at the same terrace, but precedent is not a 
sound reason for withholding consent for a development that is found to be acceptable.

In relation to other matters, while it is an understandable concern the consequence for property 
values, as members are aware, this is not a material planning consideration.  The matter of means 
of escape is linked to that of fire safety and that is controlled under the Building regulations.  
Informal discussion with the Council’s Building Control team confirmed it is possible to meet all fire 
safety requirements within this development.

Conclusion:

Weight has been given in this case to the predominance of this type of slate finished extension to 
similar Victorian/Edwardian era buildings in London and arguably there are similar attributes to 
London in the form and age of buildings in this part of Queens Road. The proposal will sit behind 
the retained front parapet and will not have a dominant visual impact on the street scene. On 
balance therefore, it is considered that demonstrable harm will not be caused and any precedent 



will not be an undesirable one. The proposal complies with relevant planning policy and it is 
recommended that planning permission be granted. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Stephan Solon
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564018

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



123

 

34.4m

34.7m

34.4m

34.7m

33.2m

33.2m

33.2m

33.2m

34.4m

34.4m

34.4m

34.4m

Swimming Baths

311

309

3

305

1

301

St
 E

dm
un

d's
RC

 C
hu

rc
h

14

5

1

7
Di

gg
en

s 
Ct8

6
29

 3
0

31
 3

2

7 
8 

15

9 
10

 1
3 

14

16

283 281 279

289 287 285

33

295

25
2

b

11
 1

2

291

3 
4 

19
 2

0

261

271 269 267

265 263

Br
oo

kly
n 

Co
ur

t

5 
6 

17
 1

8
27

 2
8

271 269 267

277 275 273

1

23
 2

4

1 
2 

21
 2

2

2

5

26
2

2
4

1

9

b

25
8

Methodist
Loughton

Church

c

25
2

25
2

a
7

24
2

25
2

a
25

2

24
6 

to
 2

50

25
2

24
2

25
2

24
6 

to
 2

50

25
2

23
4

244b

a

23
6 

to
 2

40

24
4

24
4

244b

a

23
6 

to
 2

40

23
4

Sorting

Hall

Office

25
6

21
4

237a

21
6 

21
8

239a

241

239

22
0

249

21
2

23
0

23
0

23
0

22
8

257

El

21

23
2

Sub Sta

237

20
2

20
4 

to
 2

10

Health Centre

4

Health Centre

4

Sub StaSub Sta
El

64

El

64

27

14

22

27

14

22

6

11

16

6

El Sub Sta

6969

6
5

c

25
8

Office
Sorting

25
6

311

St
 E

dm
un

d's

Swimming Baths

RC
 C

hu
rc

h

309

3

305

1

301

9
2

7

26
2

4

Di
gg

en
s 

Ct8

1

9 
10

 1
3 

14

11
 1

2

24
4

291

29
 3

0

295

31
 3

2

16

283 281 279

289 287 285

33

7 
8 

15

265 263

24
4

Br
oo

kly
n 

Co
ur

t

23
 2

4

5 
6 

17
 1

8
27

 2
8

261

277 275 273

1 
2 

21
 2

2

3 
4 

19
 2

0

Hall

Methodist
Loughton

Church

14

7

1

237a

21
6 

21
8

239a

237

20
2

241

239

21
2

20
4 

to
 2

10

23
0

23
0

22
8

5

23
0

257

249
23

2

2

1

El

22
0

21
4

Sub Sta

11

16

21

6

El Sub Sta

6

CL
IF

TO
N

 R
O

AD

H
IG

H
 R

O
AD

THE DRIVE

H
IG

H
 R

O
AD

CL
IF

TO
N

 R
O

AD

THE DRIVE

GOULD'S ALLEY

GP

LB

JACKSON ALLEY

Car Park

GP

LB

Car Park

GOULD'S ALLEY

JACKSON ALLEY

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 8

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/1335/15

Site Name: 236 High Road
Loughton, IG10 1RB

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/1335/15

SITE ADDRESS: 236 High Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1RB

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT: Ms Nancy Venables 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Change of use from shop (use class A1) to use as an estate 
agency office (use class A2).

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=576673

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The glazed area in the existing shop front shall be permanently retained, and it shall 
be used for display purposes appropriate to a High Road shopping area.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

The application site is a three storey mid terrace shop unit with flats above located on the west 
side of the High Road close to the junction with The Drive.  The site is currently trading as a sports 
shop and is located within the key frontage of the Town Centre.  The next door shops are a café 
(Village Deli) and an estate agent (Douglas Allen).  The site is not within the Metropolitan Green 
Belt or a Conservation Area.  

Description of Proposal:

The proposal seeks permission for the change of use from shop (use class A1) to use as an estate 
agency office (use class A2).   

Relevant History:

None relevant

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=576673


Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
TC1 – Town Centre Hierarchy
TC3 – Town centre function.  
TC4 – Non-retail frontage
TC5 – Window Displays

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  Policies TC3 and TC4 are partially 
and generally compliant with the National Planning Policy Framework - the NPPF introduces more 
flexibility for non-retail uses in shopping areas. 

Additionally recent changes to the GPDO, specifically Part 4, Class D which allow for a temporary 
change of use from A1 to A2 for a period of 2 years without the need for planning permission.  

Summary of Representations:

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: The Council OBJECTED to the loss of another A1 retail unit, 
which would result in three estate agencies positioned adjacent to each other in the High Road.  
6 Neighbours consulted and a Site Notice erected: No responses received

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with this proposal relates to the impact on the town centre.

Town Centre

The proposal will result in more than two adjacent non-retail uses and non-retail use in Loughton 
High Road is already in excess of 30% which is contrary to policy TC4.  However, although the 
NPPF still requires Local Planning Authorities to define primary shopping areas and define what 
uses would be considered appropriate within it, it is not as rigid as policy TC4 and therefore this 
policy is only partially compliant with the NPPF.  The NPPF encourages competitive town centre 
environments, and seeks to include a wider range of uses in centres, not just retail.   

Although not a retail shop within the Town Centre, the applicant has suggested that the current 
owner of the sports shop wishes to end their lease.  Additionally the proposed estate agency is a 
local business currently operating from premises on  York Hill and the business would like to move 
to a more visible and prominent location.  

Estate agencies are common additions to shopping parades, and can add to a degree to the 
vitality and viability of a shopping area.  It is proposed that a window display will be retained and 
this can be conditioned to ensure a window display is installed.  

Additionally, the proposal could be completed under the recent changes to the GPDO, as the 
proposal falls within the scope of this legislation allowing the change from A1 to A2 without the 
requirement for planning permission for a period of two years. 



Conclusion:

The proposal is considered a balanced case, however relaxation of National policy, recent 
changes to permitted development legislation and the need to avoid empty units in shopping areas 
is considered sufficient to recommend approval for this application.   

  

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564414

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 




	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Plans South Map
	Area Planning Subcommittee South - members photo sheet 15-16

	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	10 Development Control

	7 Development Control

